M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 26, 2003
9: 03 AM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 31, Side A
SFC 03 # 31, Side B
SFC 03 # 32, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:03 AM
PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice Chair
Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Al so Attending: PAT PITNEY, Director, Budget and Institutional
Research, University of Al aska; MKE MAHER, Director, D vision of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnment of Environnmental Conservati on;
TOM CHAPPEL, Director, Division of Ar and Wter Quality,
Departnent of Environnmental Conservation; LARRY D ETRICK, D rector,
Division of Spill Prevention and Response, Departnent  of
Environnental Conservation; DAN EASTON, Director, D vision of
Facility Construction and Operation, Departnent of Environnental
Conservati on;

Attending via Tel econference: There were no teleconference
parti ci pants.

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 100- APPROP: CAPI TAL PRQIECTS

The Comm ttee heard overviews of budget requests of the University
of Al aska and the Departnent of Environnental Conservation. The
bill was held in Commttee.

SFC- 03 (1) 03/ 26/ 03



#SB100

SENATE BI LL NO. 100

"An Act naking capital appropriations and reappropriations;
capitalizing a fund; maki ng appropriations under art. |X sec.
17(c), Constitution of the State of Alaska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date.”

University of Al aska

PAT PITNEY, Director, Budget and Institutional Research, University
of Al aska noted the Board of Regents submtted a funding request as
well. She stressed that the Governor's proposed budget represents
approxi mately one-tenth the amount recomrended by the Board.

Saf ety and Hi ghest Priority Renewal and Repl acenent

$3, 000, 000 Al aska Student Loan Corporation (ASLC) Dividend
$641, 500 general funds

Ref erence No.: 38415

Cat egory: University

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2007
Phased- New Proj ect

Projects in this category include highest priority facility
renewal and replacenment, code correction and Anericans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) projects. An investnent in this
category represents a commitnment to inprove student safety and
maintain building functionality. Fire Safety and El evator
Safety and Mboderni zation Projects top this list, as the
university's nost vital safety needs.

Ms. Pitney stated this request would include elevator repair, fire
safety, etc. that have a highest safety priority.

Co-Chair WIlken asked if these are listed in the backup material in
order of priority.

Ms. Pitney replied there is no priority order as they are all
i nportant.

Co-Chair WIken surm sed therefore the amount appropriated woul d be
distributed as best as possi ble between all projects.

Senator Hoffrman noted no projects listed are |located on rural
canmpuses and asked whether no life, health and safety issues exist

SFC- 03 (2) 03/ 26/ 03



in those areas.

Ms. Pitney pointed out the Board of Regents request for $971,000 to
address conmunity canmpus needs.

Senat or Hof f man asked that the process utilized to eval uate those
projects be included in the budget request.

Ms. Pitney explained how each canmpus submits list of projects,
whi ch are conpiled according to criterion established by the Board
of Regents. She stated the Board then reviews the projects.

Co-Chair Green requested an expl anation of the ASLC D vi dends and
Uni versity receipts fundi ng sources.

Ms. Pitney stated the University views the ASLC dividends as State
funding appropriated at the discretion of the |egislature. She
noted the University receipts are generated fromtuition, private
partnershi ps, donations, foundation receipts, auxiliary receipts
collected fromdormtory and food services, etc.

Attracting and Retaining Students

$10, 800, 000 Uni versity Receipts

Ref erence No.: 38419

Category: University

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2007
Phased- New Pr oj ect

This request contains projects essential to the University's
goal of attracting and retaining students.

Ms. Pitney stated this itemincludes two projects: a bookstore at
t he Anchorage canpus and student housi ng.

Senat or Tayl or asked if funds from other sources were intended for
use on the bookstore project.

Ms. Pitney affirnmed and explained the issuance of bonds to
construct the dormtories. She inforned this is standard practice
of university funding.

Smal | Busi ness Devel opnent Center
$550, 000 general funds

Ref erence No.: 37926

Cat egory: University

Locati on: Anchorage Areaw de

El ection District: Anchorage Areaw de

SFC- 03 (3) 03/ 26/ 03



Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008

Phased Proj ect

The Al aska Small Business Devel opnent Center (ASBDC) is a
st at ewi de busi ness assi stance program The services it offers
to small businesses are not duplicated or provided by any
ot her agency or organization. The primary enphasis of the
program is in-depth, quality business counseling. Through
prof essi onal counseling, snmall businesses are assisted in
solving problens concerning operations, manuf act uri ng,
engi neering technol ogy exchange, accounting, business strategy
devel opnent and ot her productivity and nmanagenent i nprovenent.
The individual business counseling is supplenented wth
qual ity business training designed to inprove the skills and
know edge of existing and prospective small busi ness
owner s/ managers.

Co-Chair W1 ken noted the $100, 000 i ncrease over the previous year
fundi ng and requested an expl anati on.

Ms. Pitney replied this request is for operating funds and pointed
out that no increases had been allocated to this programfor over
ten years. He stated the ampunt requested recognizes increased
expenses and al so woul d secure ot her matching funds.

Co-Chair Wl ken asked if clients are assessed a fee.

Ms. Pitney replied that in some instances fees are charged to cover
operating expenses. She also inforned that sone |ocal governnents
contribute significantly to the operating expenses for the offices
in their communities.

Co-Chair WIlken asked if the l|ocal governnment contributions were
utilized to offset the general funds appropriated to the program

Ms. Pitney responded the contributions are necessary to provide the
services in the participating cormunities and that general funds
are utilized for core operating expenses. She remarked that if
unlimted funds were available, the program would be offered in
several communiti es.

Senator O son asked if the university instituted a nethod to track
the effectiveness of this service.

Ms. Pitney answered it does and stated she could provide extensive
evi dence of the success of the program She |isted testinonials and
noted startup support is provided to small businesses.

Senat or Bunde noted the claim of no duplication of services

SFC- 03 (4) 03/ 26/ 03



provi ded by other organi zati ons and asked if this includes private
or gani zati ons.

Ms. Pitney understood the claimto include other State services.

Senat or Bunde told of private service providers conplaining of
unfair conpetition fromthe University.

Senator Taylor commented on nuseuns and other educational
facilities located in his election district incurring significant
fundi ng reducti ons.

University Center - Phase 2

$2, 400, 000 University Receipts

Ref erence No.: 37841

Cat egory: University

Locati on: Anchorage Areaw de

El ection District: Anchorage Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2007

Phased Proj ect

Phase Il of the University Center project would enconpass the
acqui sition of an additional 35,000 gsf in turnkey condition
to house UAA workforce developnent, training and adult
| earning center prograns. These prograns have a direct
relationship to the applied technology and workforce
devel opnent prograns acconmpdated in Phase | of the project.

Ms. Pitney explained this funding is generated primarily from
private partnerships.

Ms. Pitney noted the Board of Regents' request included $3.4
mllion State funding.

Senator Bunde revisited his earlier coments regarding the
University providing services in conpetition with the private
sector. He asked if the workforce devel opnent, training and adul t
education services could be provided by a private entity.

Ms. Pitney was unsure, but stated she would research the matter.
Senator Hoffman conpared the Governor's proposed budget to the
Capi tal Budget Request Sunmary submitted by the University [copy on
file] and asked if the nunbering of the proposed projects in the
Summary is based on priority assigned by the Board of Regents.

Ms. Pitney affirmed the itens are prioritized within categories.

Senat or Hof fman asked if the nursing facility would be addressed.

SFC- 03 (5) 03/ 26/ 03



Ms. Pitney replied that funding is not included in the Governor's
proposed budget .

Senator Taylor clarified the cost of the University Center - Phase
Il project is a $5.8 mllion project including $3.4 million in
general funds.

Ms. Pitney explained that the conceived project would cost $5.8
mllion and although the entire amount would not allow for the
project as planned, other options would be revi ewed.

Senat or Tayl or asked the anmobunt of University receipts anticipated
woul d be used to fund this project.

Ms. Pitney told of separate |egislation authorizing an expenditure
of an estimated $14 nmillion for Phase | of the project.

Senat or Taylor recalled earlier discussions indicated the project
woul d have significant | ower costs.

Ms. Pitney explained the previous proposal two years prior involved
the purchase of unrenovated enpty space as opposed to a turnkey
purchase as specified in this project. She suggested Menbers visit
the facility in question.

Senator Taylor comented that at a cost of $20 mllion, the
facility should be "anmazing".

Senat or Hof fman asked the | ocation of the facility.

Ms. Pitney responded it would be within the University Center Ml
in Anchorage on A d Seward H ghway.

Senator B. Stevens interjected that a portion of funding for this
project was included in the bond package approved by voters in the
previ ous el ection.

Senat or Tayl or spoke of another proposed projects including the on-
going renovation of a hanger in Sitka into classroons that was
identified as the second highest priority by the Board of Regents
but not included in this budget.

Ms. Pitney affirned.
Co-Chair WI ken requested the witness overview the itens included

in the Governor's proposed budget then provide another brief
overview of the Board's requests.

SFC- 03 (6) 03/ 26/ 03



Senator 4 son asked the nunber of students who would utilize the
Sitka facility.

Ms. Pitney described the classroons, |aboratories, etc. She did not
have a specific nunber of students who would utilize the facility,
al t hough approxinmately 1,200 students attend the University of
Al aska Sout heast Sitka canpus.

Co-Chair Geen asked if the $3.4 million additional funding
requested by the Board of Regents included el sewhere.

Ms. Pitney answered it is not.

Senat or Hof f man asked whether the private partnership funding is
dependant upon recei pt of State funding.

Ms. Pitney told of the current plan that includes two funding
sources and that a State appropriation would be necessary to
conplete the project. She furthered that the receipt authority
woul d provide the ability to pursue other funding sources. She
i ndi cated ot her options could be consi dered.

Senat or Hof fman asked therefore why the |egislature should not
grant authority for the entire $5.8 mllion in the event other
funds coul d be secured.

Ms. Pitney replied, "part of the $2.4 nmillion figure is based on
affordability within the University for those itens" and what was
expected to be the anmount that could be raised through other
sour ces.

Senator Tayl or asked whether the project could be anended were
adequate funding not provided for the project as currently
pr oposed.

Ms. Pitney responded that if State funds were not appropriated, the
current plan nust be changed.

Repl acenent of Research Vesse

$80, 000, 000 Uni versity Receipts

Ref erence No.: 37823

Category: University

Locati on: Fairbanks Areaw de

El ection District: Fairbanks Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2007
One-tinme Project

Repl acenent for the Al pha Helix research vessel

SFC- 03 (7) 03/ 26/ 03



Ms. Pitney explained the concept that the federal governnent woul d
contract for construction of a ship to be given to the University
to manage and conduct research activities in the north Pacific
Ccean.

Senat or Bunde asked if the vessel would then be operated at the
Uni versity's expense.

Ms. Pitney detailed the process of research facilities whereby
research grants take into account operation of the facility, in
this case a ship.

Senat or Bunde commented that if no research grants were awarded the
ship would sit idle.

Ms. Pitney affirmed, but stressed that the current vessel is
heavily utilized with nore requests for research project than could
be net. She noted the planned vessel woul d accommbdat e addi ti onal
research activities and she assured the vessel would not be idle.

Senator Taylor noted the $75 mllion allocation fromthe National
Sci ence Foundation, although the actual cost could be $80 mllion
and asked how the remaining $5 nmillion would be generated.

Ms. Pitney responded that other federal funds would be utilized,
possi bly fromthe National Cceanic and Atnospheric Adm nistration
(NQAA)

Senator B. Stevens questioned why the proposed budget contains this
request for receipt authority when the federal funding is not
i ncluded in federal |egislation.

Ms. Pitney expressed this project is one of the University's
hi ghest priorities and that this authorization would ensure no
del ay once the federal funding is officially provided.

Senator B. Stevens asked at what point the University obtains
control of the vessel, once it is constructed or upon actual
delivery to Alaska. He estimated 18 nonths would be required to
construct the vessel and questioned the need for receipt authority
given that the vessel would not be conpleted until FY 05 or FY 06.
Ms. Pitney enphasized the efforts to plan ahead.

Senat or Bunde asked where the vessel would |ikely be constructed.

Ms. Pitney did not know.

SFC- 03 (8) 03/ 26/ 03



Smal | Project Receipt Authority

$5, 000, 000 University Receipts

Ref erence No.: 37852

Category: University

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2009

One-tinme Project

The value of this request is an estimtion of potential
recei pt authority needed for FY 04 for main and comrunity
campuses.

And

Project and Pl anni ng Recei pt Authority

$10, 000, 000 Uni versity Receipts

Ref erence No.: 38422

Category: University

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2007

One-tinme Project

This request for non-general fund authority will allow the
university to nmake expenditures in response to energi ng needs
that can be self-funded or partially self-funded.

Ms. Pitney expressed the intent to take advantage of opportunities
to partner with the federal governnment or private foundations.

Co-Chair W I ken asked for an exanple of projects that would be
undertaken with these funds.

Ms. Pitney exanpled the pavilion |ocated in Juneau. She also told
of advance plans to construct a research facility in Fairbanks and
integrated science facility in Anchorage utilizing foundation
f undi ng.

West Ri dge Research Buil ding

$2, 000, 000 Federal Receipts

$14, 000, 000 Uni versity Receipts

Ref erence No.: 38475

Category: University

Locati on: Fairbanks Areaw de

Election District: Fairbanks Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2007
One-Ti me Proj ect

Provide authority to receive funds to build Wst Ridge

SFC- 03 (9) 03/ 26/ 03



Resear ch Bui |l di ng.
And

Yukon Flats Training Center Expansion Conpletion

$1, 200, 000 Federal Receipts

$1, 100, 000 University Receipts

Ref erence No.: 38514

Cat egory: University

Location: Fort Yukon

Election District: Interior Villages

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2007
One-Ti me Proj ect

Aut hority is requested to receive funding fromthe Econom c
Devel opnent Admi nistration (EDA) and ot her sources to expand
the Yukon Flats Training Center. The addition will house the
conputer |ab and provide space for uliti-day or multi-week
training prograns in Voc-Tech and ot her disciplines.

Ms. Pitney noted these itens reflect technical adjustnments. She
expl ained the West Ridge facility would be constructed utilizing
bonding authority and the bonds would be re-payed with grant
funding for research activities conducted within the facility.

Ms. Pitney furthered that the Yukon Flats Training Center is
simlar, in that the funding source would be changed.

Senator Hof frman referenced that the aforenentioned Board summary
does not include these itens.

Ms. Pitney affirmed because these are technical changes.

Senat or Hof f man asked how this conplies with the bondi ng package
approved by voters in the previous election.

Ms. Pitney stated that these technical changes are in conpliance
wi th the bondi ng package.

Senat or Bunde spoke to the intent to provide training to unenpl oyed
and underenployed adults and asked if any research has been
conducted to determne whether participants obtain jobs upon
conpl etion of the program

Ms. Pitney assured that extensive followup occurs.

Senat or Bunde asked whether training is provided for fields in
whi ch jobs are avail abl e.

Ms. Pitney enphasized that before a programis offered, significant

SFC- 03 (10) 03/ 26/ 03



demand is identified for training in a particular field. Once this
training is provided and a workforce available, she stated the
programis relocated to another conmunity to nmeet denands in that
| ocati on.

Senat or Bunde spoke of frustration for graduates who receive
training then are unable to apply it.

Ms. Pitney spoke of the close relationships with conmunities.

Senator B. Stevens cited the Governor's proposed budget i ncludes
$120.9 mllion of university receipts for capital projects and the
request for $98 mllion is included in the proposed FY 04 operating
budget and asked whether the University is requesting a total
amount of $218 mllion or if some "overlap" is occurring.

Ms. Pitney replied that a "very small overlap" exists in that
funding for planning is included in the operating budget.

Ms. Pitney explained that the bookstore and housing projects
requests overlap in the capital and operating budgets because sone
funds woul d be generated fromuniversity receipts and included in
t he capital budget and other funds are generated from debt service
on bonds and included in the operating budget.

Senator B. Stevens requested docunentation of non-duplicable
expenditures for the previous five years.

Ms. Pitney stated that she would provide this information.

Senat or Bunde recalled that the existing bookstore is required to
breakeven or earn a profit and asked if this would be required for
the new facility.

Ms. Pitney responded this is the expectation.

Senator Bunde asked if the new dormtory would also be self-
sufficient.

Ms. Pitney stated that revenues generated from the existing
dormtory wunits pay operating expenses plus contribute to
uni versity receipts.

SFC 03 # 31, Side B 09:50 AM

Co-Chair Green commented that the requests included in the proposed

SFC- 03 (11) 03/ 26/ 03



budget distribute funds primarily to Fairbanks, Anchorage and
Juneau. She asserted that other canmpuses have needs that are not
i ncl uded.

Senat or Hof fman asked how the bookstore and dormitory projects
woul d be undertaken if adequate funding were not appropriated.

Ms. Pitney spoke to the anmount of funds needed to conplete both
projects and indicated that if not appropriated by the |egislature,
attenpts would be nade to secure funding fromother sources, or the
projects would be addressed with funding requested over severa
fiscal years.

Ms. Pitney then addressed the Board of Regent's funding request of
$42.4 mllion in State funding plus $108 mllion in University
recei pt authority. She remarked the projects not included in the
Governor's proposed budget are University-w de at main canpuses and
comunity canpuses and necessary to maintain a solid foundation.
She informed that these are primarily small itenms, such as
renovating a classroomto change disciplines, parking structures,
exterior refurbishing, etc. She pointed that any institution with
$1.2 billion of facilities, a regular investnent is necessary. She
asserted that the $17 mllion proposed is "far bel ow' the anount
required.

Senat or Taylor asked whether the University has historically
depended upon the legislature to provide funds for maintenance.

Ms. Pitney assured this is not basic maintenance, which is funded
through the operating budget. She clarified this request is for
fundi ng of boiler replacenent and sim |l ar expenses.

Senator Taylor asked if the University therefore does not maintain
a building fund simlar to private businesses to address such
expenses.

Ms. Pitney replied that such a fund is not maintained in all cases.
She noted that a 30-year old |laboratory is insufficient for current
research and educational needs. She noted that sone facilities have
"sinking funds" with which to address nmi ntenance issues.

Ms. Pitney continued her presentation of the Board of Regent's
budget request, speaking to the necessity of attracting and
retai ning students, noted that the amount of University contributed
funding is higher than the anobunt requested of the State.

Senat or Hof fman commented on the difficulties in retaining students
at rural canpuses. He infornmed that he discussed the matter with

SFC- 03 (12) 03/ 26/ 03



President Mark Ham Iton and was inforned that additional efforts
are necessary. Senator Hoffman cited that graduation rates of
freshnen are very |low and asked no action is proposed to address
this concern

Ms. Pitney replied that operating budget funding could be better
applied to this issue. She told of significant efforts undertaken
at the Bethel canpus and of pilot progranms underway to secure
retention of students.

Ms. Pitney described the My UA Portal project, intended for
attracting and retaining students. She explained this "conputer
technol ogy concept" that would bring the University of Al aska to
|l evel s simlar to other wuniversities in information technol ogy
delivery of services, both business and instructional.

Senator Bunde asked if this would be an online version of the
exi sting catal og.

Ms. Pitney enphasized it woul d nore sophisticated and woul d i ncl ude
syl | abuses coursework, adviser contact, business services, ordering
of books and nmaterials and other services for distant |earning
students.

Senator Taylor noted the benefits provided to the children of
University enployees to attend tuition-free. He surm sed that
because of this programall college-age children would attend the
Uni versity; however, he has |l earned that 96 percent were attending
ot her school s.

Ms. Pitney next addressed the Board's budget requests targeted at
preparing for Al aska s econom c success, including nursing and
vocational technical training. She told of significant efforts to
provi de nursing education and cited the workforce need is expected
to continue through the year 2020. She anticipated that the
University would be unable to fulfill the need to provide trained
nur si ng personnel within 20 years.

Senat or Tayl or asked the nunber of students currently enrolled in
t he nursing program

Ms. Pitney listed 110 graduations with intent to increase the
nunber to 220 graduates. She infornmed that 300 nursing majors are
attending the University with 800 students on the waiting list for
the program She stated that education services are offered in
Anchor age, Fairbanks and Kodi ak, with plans to expand services to
Juneau and Bet hel .

SFC- 03 (13) 03/ 26/ 03



Senator Tayl or asked about the Tanana Valley Community Coll ege
(TVCC) relocation to the Fai rbanks courthouse buil di ng.

Ms. Pitney responded that the TVCC received the old courthouse
bui |l di ng; however it nust be renovated. She stated the facility
woul d be utilized for the delivery of different courses.

Senat or Taylor asked if the TVCC was noving out of its current
| ocati on.

Ms. Pitney infornmed that the TVCC has outgrown the current
facility.

Co-Chair WIlken referenced a book describing the TVCC and its
progr ans.

Ms. Pitney redescribed the proposed construction of major science
facilities in Anchorage and Fairbanks, indicating that funding for
these projects would be requested the follow ng fiscal year.

Senat or Hof f man commented that the nursing programhas had a | ot of
success, and asked why it has a lower priority than small business
devel opnent .

Ms. Pitney replied that the Small Business Devel opnent Center has
been historically funded at one |level and that a funding increase
i s needed. She surm sed that the eval uation process, prioritizing
projects according to category could have resulted in the higher
priority assigned to the Small Busi ness Devel opnent Center.

Senator Hoffman preferred prioritization of all projects regardl ess
of whether they are categorized as pertaining to the attracti on and
retention of students, beneficial to econom c devel opnent, etc.

Ms. Pitney stated she would relay that nessage to the Board of
Regent s.

Senat or Tayl or opined that bonding does not appear to provide
adequate funding for the proposed projects.

Ms. Pitney relayed the intent had been to utilize bondi ng generated
revenue to partially fund proposed projects, including the Lena
Poi nt | aboratory in Juneau and the science facilities in Anchorage
and Fairbanks. She furthered that additional funding would be
requested to cover the remaining costs.

Senator Taylor comrented that he did not realize this at the tine
t he bondi ng package was approved the previous year.

SFC- 03 (14) 03/ 26/ 03



Senat or Tayl or thanked the witness for her presentation.

Department of Environnental Conservation

Co-Chair WIken referenced a handout titled, "Village Safe Water,
Community Total s" [copy on file] which, although does not directly
pertain to the discussion, could provide information to nenbers. He
t hanked Departnental personnel for their efforts on conpiling this
i nformation.

Assessnent of Health Ri sks From Use of Diesel Fuel in Rura
Al aska

$768, 300

Ref erence No.: 38513

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2006
One-Ti me Proj ect

Rural Al aska communities are facing a major decision about
di esel fuel use. By 2007, they nust decide to either incur the
costs of building a separate and new fuel tank infrastructure
for handling a new cl eaner diesel fuel for trucks and buses or
convert their entire community fuel use for electrical power,
heati ng and vehicles to the cleaner diesel fuel. Either case
will incur significant costs for the community, individuals
and perhaps the State. This decision can not be made w t hout
knowi ng the health risks and health costs of continuing to use
the existing grade diesel fuel for power and heat.

MKE MAHER, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Depart ment of Environnental Conservation, introduced M. Chappel.

TOM CHAPPEL, Director, Division of Ar and Water Quality,
Department of Environnental Conservation, noted the federal
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has passed regulations
applying to trucks and vehicles. He told of the need to understand
the health inpacts on rural Al askan residents, as existing data
applies to national highway use only. He pointed out that the
majority of diesel fuel is utilized for power generation in rural
Al askan communities than for trucks and buses as occurs in other
ar eas.

Senat or Bunde assuned that if the studies indicate a conversion is

advi sabl e, a substantial expense would be required. He asked the
estimate of this expense.

SFC- 03 (15) 03/ 26/ 03



M . Chappel gave speculation of the increased costs. He rel ayed
that the new fuel is manufactured in the state of Washington at an
additional cost of five to ten cents per gallon. He pointed out
this does not include shipnent to rural Al askan comrunities and
other factors that could increase the anmount as nuch as 40 cents
nore. He surm sed that during the first year, a “sorting out of the
mar ket” woul d occur before the actual price of the new fuel woul d
be establi shed.

Senat or Bunde predicted that eventually, the new fuel would be
requi red and suggested the funds proposed for this study could be
better spent on the new fuel.

Senat or Tayl or i nquired about the use of federal funds.

M . Chappel responded that the State has determined this study is
i nportant, although the federal governnent has yet to announce
whether it would fund the project. He stated that "conpelling
inference," indicates the new fuel would dom nate the market,
possi bly necessitating the conversions.

Senat or Tayl or understood the concerns but suggested they are
m spl aced. He doubted significant evidence could be found to
determ ne health risks between the two fuels. He suggested the
focus should be the costs involved in the conversions. He renarked
that the current health risk assessnments apply to Los Angel es,
California, and possibly Anchorage and Fairbanks, but not to rural
Al askan communities. He stressed the Legislature nust rmake a policy
call as to the amount the State should spend to inplenent a
deci sion made i n Washi ngton D. C

Senat or Tayl or asked what federal receipts would be used to fund
this project and whether the funds woul d be diverted from anot her
proj ect.

M. Chappel replied that the Departnent woul d request federal funds
specifically for this study. He asserted that health consequences,
if any, are unknown. He stated that if the new fuel cost ten cents
nore per gallon and no health consequences were identified, the
Department coul d argue agai nst maki ng conversi ons.

Senat or Tayl or questioned how the conversion could be avoided if
only the new fuel is manufactured. He pointed out that air quality
probl ens have only occurred in Fairbanks and Anchorage and
suggested any studi es should be conducted in those |ocations.

Senat or Tayl or comrented that funds directed fromthe EPA woul d be
acceptable for this project.

SFC- 03 (16) 03/ 26/ 03



Senat or Hof f man understood fuels are assessed di fferent taxes and
di esel used for notor vehicles is distinguished through the use of
bl ue dye. He asked how the fuels are differentiated in rural areas.

M. Chappel replied that rural Al askan comunities are not required
to separate the fuels.

Senator O son asked if the health inpacts of the different diesel
fuels are studied el sewhere, possibly by the national Center for
D sease Control .

M. Chappel affirnmed that significant data has been collected in
areas al ong naj or roadways and i n nei ghborhoods near roadways. He
stated that this information has established that the health risks
justify the higher cost of the cleaner fuel for these areas.
However, he reiterated that no data exists for areas far from najor
roadways. He relayed that the Departnment has discussed the issue
with the Center for Toxic Disease, although the CDC has not been
involved to date. He noted that if the project progresses, the CDC
woul d be included in the assessnent.

Senator O son asked if the CDC were involved whether that agency
woul d provi de funds.

M. Chappel assured the Department would attenpt to secure funds
fromany potential source.

Senator Bunde predicted that because the usage in Alaska is
considerably less than in the Lower 48, continued manufacture of
the ol der fuel solely for use in Alaska is unlikely. He referenced
Senator Taylor's opinion that it is acceptable to expend federa
funds for this project. Senator Bunde commented on public concerns
regarding the State's total budget, citing this project as an
exanpl e of increased spending.

St at ewi de Contam nated Sites O eanup

$5, 000, 000 O |/ Haz funds

Ref erence No.: 33826

Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008

On- goi ng Proj ect

This CP funds assessnent and cleanup of highest priority
state-owned sites or sites where the responsible party is
unknown or has refused to take appropriate action. Wrk
i ncludes site assessnent, corrective action plan, clean up,

SFC- 03 (17) 03/ 26/ 03



nonitoring and final site closure.

LARRY DI ETRICK, Director, Division of Spill Prevention and
Response, Departnment of Environnental Conservation, outlined this
item

Senator O son asked the success rate of recouping funds from
busi nesses or other entities.

M. Dietrick gave the three-year average recuperation rate at 90
percent. He el aborated that sonme paynents are not received until
after the cleanup is conpleted and sone instances require
litigation.

Senat or O son asked the anmount of the remaining ten percent that
woul d remai n unrecover abl e.

SFC 03 # 32, Side A 10:39 AM

M. Dietrick replied that this information is contained in the
bi annual report the Departnent is required to submt to the
| egi slature. He stated he would provide a copy to Senator O son.

Senat or Hof fman asked for an estimation of when all the cleanup
projects would be conpl et ed.

M. Detrick responded that 133 State-owned sites have been
identified as in "need of attention", at an estinmated total cost of
$67 mllion. He qualified that sone sites would require additiona
funds and others would require |l ess funding than predicted.

Al aska Spill Response Depots and Corps System

$300, 000 Q| /Haz Funds

Ref erence No.: 37792

Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008

On-goi ng Project

This project will provide funds to maintain readi ness and
response capabilities in Jlocal conmunities through the
purchase of response equipnment and delivery of training to
| ocal responders. The project wll also provide funds to
devel op specific geographic response strategies and tactics
for the protection of critical environnmentally sensitive areas
of the State and areas of public concern. Werever possible,

SFC- 03 (18) 03/ 26/ 03



mat ching funds for these projects wll be sought from | oca
comuni ties, other governnent agencies, and other parties.

M. Dietrick explained this project would allow the Departnent to
communi cate with |local parties "over the phone" to direct cleanup
activities. He stated this would result in cost savings with the
elimnation of travel expenses and the need to contract services.

Senat or Bunde asked the original source of the QI and Hazardous
Response funds.

M. Dietrick detailed the Response fund originally was generated
from a nickel-per-barrel tax inposed on crude oil production in
Al aska. He stated that in 1995, the |legislature adjusted the tax
rate to "a two-cent three-cent”, explaining this funding source is
generated fromthe three cents per barrel collected.

Senat or Hof f man understood this fund bal ance has a linmtation, at
which time the tax is no | onger inposed.

M. Detrick affirmed and expl ai ned that once the bal ance reaches
$50 million, the two-cent tax collected for the Reserve Response
Account, is suspended. He noted the tax has not been collected for
five years.

Data I ntegration

$580, 000 federal receipts

Ref erence No.: 37972

Cat egory: Devel opnent

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2005

On-goi ng Project

The Departnent of Environnental Conservation is integrating
t he many sources of information within the departnment for nore
efficient and effective nmanagenent, regulating and service to
t he public.

M . Maher explained this funding is a grant and would be utilized
with the intent to nake informati on accessi ble to decision nakers
and the public. He stated the grant has two parts: one for external
integration of the four states included in "Region 10", and a one-
stop grant for internal integration, designed to extend funds to
prograns within the Departnent.

M. Maher relayed that Comm ssioner Ernesta Ballard requested the

Departnent conpletely overhaul all data operations from the web
site to developing on-line permtting.

SFC- 03 (19) 03/ 26/ 03



Muni ci pal Water, Sewer and Solid Waste Matching G ant Projects
$6, 447, 100 AHFC ( Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation) D vidend
$6, 708, 800 federal receipts

$10, 721, 300 general funds

Ref erence No.: 33824

Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/30/2008

State Match Required

On-goi ng Project

Grants to larger comunities for nunicipal water, sewer, and
solid waste planning, design and construction projects. Gants
require a local match of 15% - 50% of project costs.

DAN EASTON, Director, Dyvision of Facility Construction and
Qper ation, Department of Environnmental Conservation, testified that
the mssion of the Division is to "assist comunities in inproving
sanitation conditions.” He stated the Division acconplishes this by
maki ng loans and grants available and otherwise working wth
comunities to build water, sewer and solid waste facilities. He
noted this itemand the remaining itens address this purpose.

M. Easton explained this item addresses |arger communities and
detailed the application process in which the Departnent assesses
need based on public health and environnental conditions, as well
as the conmunities' record of operating and naintaining existing
water and waste facilities. He pointed out the local match
requi renent of 15 to 20 percent and that the program is funded
primarily with State funds, although federal funds could be used in
sonme smaller communities |ocated away fromthe najor road system

Senator Bunde clarified this program funds the construction of
facilities and that the ongoing operating and mai nt enance expenses
woul d be the responsibility of the conmunity.

M. Easton affirned.

Village Safe Water Project Adm nistration

$506, 400 AHFC Di vi dend

$1, 519, 100 federal receipts

Ref erence No.: 33820

Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008
State Match Required

SFC- 03 (20) 03/ 26/ 03



On-goi ng Project

Village Safe Water project adm nistration is the operating
cost of delivering Village Safe Water engineers and other
program staff, as well as associated travel, contracts,
suppl i es and equi pnent .

M. Easton noted the Village Safe Water project provides grants to
the smallest communities for water, sewer and solid waste projects.
He detail ed the process whereby proposals are submtted each year
and ranked by the Departnent according to public health and
environnental criteria, as well as the comunity's capacity to
operate and maintain the system He pointed out these grants
require no local match and that the projects are funded with 75
percent federal funds and 25 percent State matchi ng funds.

M. Easton noted this itemis essentially the sane anmount as the
current year. He stated that this funding is transferred to the
Departnent's operating budget and expended for engineering and
ot her costs associated with managi ng the project.

Senat or Bunde asked if operation and mai ntenance of the facilities
is the responsibility of the conmunity.

M. Easton affirnmed.
Senat or Bunde asked how successful this program has been.

M. Easton replied that the program has been "largely successful".
He assured that if the Departnent determ nes that a comunity is
not capabl e of operating and maintaining the system the project is
not undertaken in that area.

Senator Bunde asked if the State has been required to assune
responsibility of the systemin any comrunities.

M. Easton responded that the Departnent does not have the
capability to assune operations. He noted that the Departnent
enpl oys renote nai ntenance workers in cases of energency such as a
fire, to assist in making the system operational again. He defined
the success of communities as those undertaking good preventive
mai nt enance, collecting fees to operate the facility and enpl oyi ng
a certified operator. He cited no instances in which a conmunity
was deened absolutely incapable of operating the system and the
system had to be shut down.

Co-Chair Green referenced the use of AHFC di vidend funds for this

item and asked whet her these funds were included in the i nfornmation
provided to the Conmttee by the AHFC

SFC- 03 (21) 03/ 26/ 03



Co-Chair Wl ken assuned this "claimon the dividend" is included.

It was established that the $19, 708, 000 AHFC funding for this item
this is in addition to the dividend appropriated to the State.

Co-Chair WIken asked the efforts of the Departnment with the Denal
Comm ssion regarding village sustainability for utility projects.

M. Easton replied that the Departnment is involved with other
agencies in a Sustainable Uility Steering Commttee within the
Denali Conmi ssion, to create village sustainability.

Co-Chair WIlken requested a brief explanation of the interaction
with the Denali Conm ssion and the progress of sustainability. He
noted that the conm ssioner has “taken a different |ook” at the
statutory requirenents relating to the Village Safe Water program
and asked how this assessnent has been integrated within the
Departnent. He asked if the proposed projects had been scrutinized
with the new criteria.

M. Easton responded that the proposed projects had not been
reassessed, noting this budget request is a continuation of
previ ous years. He enphasi zed the conplexity of the matter

Village Safe Water Feasibility Studies

$736, 600 AHFC Di vi dend

$2, 209, 200 federal receipts

Ref erence No.: 33821

Cat egory: Heal t h/ Human Servi ces

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Esti mated Project Dates: 07/01/2003 — 06/ 30/2008

State Match Required

On-goi ng Project

Grants to conmunities for preparing engineering feasibility
studies. The studies identify designs and operating costs for
sanitation facilities that are appropriate for the comunity.

M. Easton noted the amount requested for this itemin FY 04 is
approxi mately $373,000 | ess than the current year appropriation.

M. Easton thanked Co-Chair Wl ken for his remarks on the Vill age
Saf e Water database. M. Easton expressed enbarrassnent over the
four years required to conplete the exercise, enphasizing that the
del ays were primarily in collecting information from sources ot her
than the Departnent. He spoke to the inportance of the conpleted
proj ect.

SFC- 03 (22) 03/ 26/ 03



#
ADJ QURNVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 11: 00 AM

SFC- 03 (23) 03/ 26/ 03



